
AGENDA 
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 

March 14, 2024 | 6:30 PM  
Council Chambers 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 

Page 1 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the City of Lucas Planning and Zoning Commission will be held on March 
14, 2024, at 6:30 pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002-7651, at which time the 
following agenda will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Planning 
and Zoning Commission may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal 
advice from the City Attorney on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 
 
If you would like to watch the meeting live, you may go to the City’s live streaming link at 
https://www.lucastexas.us/departments/public-meetings/. 
 
How to Provide Input at a Meeting: 
  
Speak In Person: Request to Speak forms will be available at the meeting. Please fill out the form 
and give to the Assistant City Manager prior to the start of the meeting. This form will also allow 
a place for comments. 
 
Submit Written Comments: If you are unable to attend a meeting and would like to submit 
written comments regarding a specific agenda item, email Kent Souriyasak, Assistant City 
Manager at kent@lucastexas.us no later than 3:30 pm the day of the meeting. The email must 
contain the person’s name, address, phone number, and the agenda item(s) for which comments 
will be made. Any requests received after 3:30 pm will not be included at the meeting. 
 
Call to Order  
 
• Determination of Quorum 
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Consent Agenda 
All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommended to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission for a single vote approval. If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for 
a separate vote. 
 
1. Consent Agenda: 
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the February 8, 2024 Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting. 

 
Public Hearing Agenda  
 
2. Conduct a public hearing and consider the request submitted by Gouri R. Joshi on behalf 

of Our Haven Investment Property, LLC to rezone a parcel of land from R-2 (Single-family 
residential 2-acre lots) to R-1 (Single-family residential 1-acre lots) being all of a 32.80 
tract of land situated in the J. Thompson Survey, Abstract Number 893, located at the 
northeast corner of the intersection of Snider Lane and Shady Lane, otherwise known as 



 Page 2 
 

Cameron Estates. 
 

A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn. 
B. Conduct public hearing. 
C. Take action on the rezoning request. 
(Presenter: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
Regular Agenda  
 
3. Consider approving the request submitted by Aziz Aghayev on behalf of Forest Grove 

Lucas, LLC for a minor plat creating two lots being 2.34 acres of a called 7.33-acre tract 
of land located in the John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract Number 506, Tract 13, otherwise 
known as 950 West Forest Grove Road, Lucas, Texas. (Presenter: Development Services 
Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
Executive Session  
 

As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Planning and Zoning Commission may convene into closed 
Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at 
any time during the meeting. This meeting is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code.  
 
4. Executive Session: There is not an executive session scheduled for this meeting. 
 
Adjournment 
 

 
5. Adjournment. 
 
Certification 
I do hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act on the bulletin board at Lucas 
City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002 and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 p.m. on 
March 8, 2024. 

 
 

_____________________________________ 
Kent Souriyasak, Assistant City Manager 

 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable accommodations for persons 
attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services should be directed to Assistant City 
Manager Kent Souriyasak at 972-912-1213 or by email at kent@lucastexas.us at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Agenda Request 
March 14, 2024 

 
 

 
Requester: Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consent Agenda: 
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the February 8, 2024 Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting. 

 
Background Information  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Minutes of the February 8, 2024 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends approval of the consent agenda as presented. 
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. 



1 | P a g e   P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  
  F e b r u a r y  8 ,  2 0 2 4  

MINUTES 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

February 8, 2024 | 6:30 PM  
Council Chambers 

City Hall | 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 
 
Commissioners Present: 

 
Staff Present: 

Chairman Tommy Tolson 
Vice-Chairman Joe Williams 
Commissioner Chris Bierman 
Commissioner James Foster 
Commissioner Frank Hise 
Alternate Commissioner Sean Alwardt 
Alternate Commissioner John Awezec 
 

City Manager Joni Clarke 
Assistant City Manager Kent Souriyasak 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
City Attorney Courtney Morris 
 
City Council Liaison Present: 
Mayor Jim Olk 

Call to Order  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
1. Consent Agenda: 
 

A. Approval of the minutes of the January 11, 2024 Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting. 

 
B. Approval of the final plat submitted by the property owner Bill Shipley on behalf of 

Golden Chick for a commercial restaurant situated on a 0.833-acre tract of land out 
of the William Snider Survey, Abstract Number 821, located at 451 South Angel 
Parkway in the City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas. 

 
C. Approval of the final plat submitted by Colton Smith with Spiars Engineering and 

Brock Babb with Centurion American Development Group, LLC on behalf of the 
property owners Mehrdad Moayedi and Steve Lenart with Lenart Development 
Company, LLC for Enchanted Creek Phase 2A, the property being 31.149 acres out 
of the James Anderson Survey, Abstract Number 17, and the John McKinney 
Survey, Abstract Number 596, located 700 feet north of the intersection of 
Enchanted Way and Lillyfield Drive in the City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas. 

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice-Chairman Williams, seconded by Commissioner Foster 

to approve the consent agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously by a 5 
to 0 vote. 

 
Public Hearing Agenda 
 
2. Conduct a public hearing and consider a Specific Use Permit (SUP) application 

submitted by Bill Shipley on behalf of Caliber Collision to permit a Caliber Collision 
paint and body shop with minor automotive located in the William Snider Survey, 
Abstract Number 821, Tract 16, being 1.75 acres of a 5.7601 acres tract of land, more 



2 | P a g e   P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  
  F e b r u a r y  8 ,  2 0 2 4  

commonly known as a tract of land on McGarity Lane, 500 feet east of the intersection 
of Angel Parkway and McGarity Lane. (Canceled) 

 
This public hearing was canceled due to the applicant withdrawing their request. 
 
3. Conduct a public hearing and consider a request by the owner Ryan Mullholand with 

Homerun Alley on behalf of Boson Motors for an amendment to the zoning use chart 
to permit electric equipment assembly and sales. 

 
A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
B. Conduct Public Hearing 
C. Take action on the request 

 
Commissioner Bierman recused himself from this agenda item. 
 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation explaining that Homerun Alley is 
requesting an amendment to the zoning use chart to permit equipment electric equipment assembly 
and sales on behalf of Boson Motors. Mr. Hilbourn recommended permitting this requested use by a 
specific use permit in the commercial business and light industrial districts. 
 
Alternate Commissioner Alwardt asked if Homerun Alley extends to Allison Lane and if the proposal 
is to build a fence to secure the area due to potential electric vehicles. Mr. Hilbourn indicated there is 
an existing detention pond and a six-foot masonry wall at Allison Lane. 
 
Chairman Tolson opened the public hearing at 6:39 pm. 
 
Arun Seelam, 12927 Ignatius Drive, Frisco, Texas, Owner of Boson Motors explained the electric 
vehicles are using for different purposes such as mowing. Mr. Seelam indicated they have 15 engineers 
and plans to bring parts from a factory in India to be locally assembled and shipped to customers in 
California and North Texas. 
 
Commissioner Hise had a concern about what would go on outside. Mr. Seelam indicated they plan 
to plant trees in open space, employees might park onsite, and they would bring in equipment to be 
conducted inside. Mr. Seelam indicated there would be no outside sales and would consider outside 
storage when they grow bigger and have access to store in the back. 
 
Alternate Commissioner Awezec asked if the vehicles would be tested on the back lot. Mr. Seelam 
indicated the vehicles would be tested outside with a top speed of three miles per hour. 
 
Chairman Tolson closed the public hearing at 6:44 pm. 
 
Chairman Tolson indicated this item is only a discussion about making an addition to the use chart 
and the applicant would still need to submit a specific use permit. Chairman Tolson has concerns 
about changing the use chart and indicated this would be a good fit for light industrial with a specific 
use permit. 
 
Chairman Tolson indicated Alternate Commissioner Awezec will serve as a voting member for this 
item as Commissioner Bierman was recused. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Vice-Chairman Williams, seconded by Commissioner Foster 

to approve recommending an amendment to the zoning use chart to permit electric 



3 | P a g e   P l a n n i n g  a n d  Z o n i n g  C o m m i s s i o n  
  F e b r u a r y  8 ,  2 0 2 4  

equipment assembly and sales in the commercial business and light industrial districts 
requested by the owner Ryan Mullholand with Homerun Alley on behalf of Boson 
Motors. The motion passed by a 3 to 2 vote with Chairman Tolson and Commissioner 
Hise voting in opposition. 

 
Commissioner Bierman returned to the meeting. 
 
4. Conduct a public hearing and consider amendments to the City of Lucas Code of 

Ordinances, Chapter 14 titled “Zoning” excluding Article 14.04 titled “Supplementary 
Regulations”, Division 8 titled “Accessory Buildings, Structures and Uses”. 

 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn gave a presentation on edits made to Chapter 14 
excluding accessory buildings made by the City Council Subcommittee. 
 
Chairman Tolson opened the public hearing at 6:57 pm. There were no members of the public wishing 
to speak. Chairman Tolson closed the public hearing at 6:57 pm. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended the following additional modifications: 
 

• Under the definition for “athletic/sports training facility,” change the term “locker” to “locker 
space.” 

• Under the Zoning Use Chart, change the term “auto paint (in building)” to “automobile repair 
collision services” to match the existing definition. 

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Commissioner Bierman, seconded by Vice-Chairman Williams 

to approve recommending the amendments as modified to Chapter 14 titled “Zoning” 
to the City Council. The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote. 

 
Executive Session 
 
5. Executive Session: There is not an executive session scheduled for this meeting. 
 
6. Adjournment. 
 
Chairman Tolson adjourned the meeting at 7:17 pm. 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tommy Tolson, Chairman Kent Souriyasak, Assistant City Manager 



Item No. 02 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Agenda Request 
March 14, 2024 

 
 

 
Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Conduct a public hearing and consider the request submitted by Gouri R. Joshi on behalf of Our 
Haven Investment Property, LLC to rezone a parcel of land from R-2 (Single-family residential 2-
acre lots) to R-1 (Single-family residential 1-acre lots) being all of a 32.80 tract of land situated in 
the J. Thompson Survey, Abstract Number 893, located at the northeast corner of the intersection 
of Snider Lane and Shady Lane, otherwise known as Cameron Estates. 
 
A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn. 
B. Conduct public hearing. 
C. Take action on the rezoning request. 
 
Background Information  
 
The property is located at the northeast corner of Snider Lane and Shady Lane and is currently 
zoned R-2. The property was originally rezoned from AO (Agriculture) to R-2 on May 1, 2006, 
and the final plat was approved at the City Council meeting on August 14, 2006. The final plat 
was never recorded with Collin County records and was vacated at the owner’s request with 
approval from the City Council on December 3, 2020. 
 
Cameron Estates has previously brought this request to rezone the property from R-2 to R-1 to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on January 14, 2021, where the request was denied. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Public Notice 
2. Depiction 
3. Zoning Application 
4. Legal Description 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends denying the request to rezone the property from R-2 to R-1. This request does 
not comply with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and additional lots would place a strain on existing 
infrastructure in the area. This area of the City is rural in nature with narrow winding roads and 
limited public improvements. 
  



Item No. 02 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Agenda Request 
March 14, 2024 

 
 

 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to recommend to the City Council approving/denying the request submitted by 
Gouri R. Joshi on behalf of Our Haven Investment Property, LLC to rezone a parcel of land from 
R-2 (Single-family residential 2-acre lots) to R-1 (Single-family residential 1-acre lots) being all 
of a 32.80 tract of land situated in the J. Thompson Survey, Abstract Number 893, located at the 
northeast corner of the intersection of Snider Lane and Shady Lane, otherwise known as Cameron 
Estates. 



 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, 
Texas will conduct a public hearing on Thursday, March 14, 2024, at 6:30 p.m., and City Council 
will conduct a second public hearing on Thursday, April 4, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. at Lucas City Hall, 
665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas to consider a request for rezoning a parcel of land from R-
2 to R-1 on a 32.80 acre tract of land out of the J. Thompson Survey Abstract No. 893 in Collin 
County Texas, being all of that certain tract of land conveyed to Our Haven Investments Property, 
LLC, by General Warranty Deed with Vendor's Lien as recorded in Instrument No. 
20160407000413150, Official Public Records, Collin County, Texas, and being more particularly 
described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron rod set with cap for corner, said point being at the southwest 
corner of said Our Haven Investments Property, LLC tract, same point being in the southeast 
corner of that certain tract of land conveyed to Jennifer Emery by deed as recorded in Instrument 
No. 20191211001574620, Official Public Records, Collin County, Texas, said point being at the 
intersection of Snider Lane and Shady Lane, said point also being in the north line of that certain 
tract of land conveyed to United States of America by deed as recorded in Volume 755, Page 382, 
Deed Records, Collin County, Texas; 
 
THENCE North 01 degrees 29 minutes 25 seconds East, along the west line of said Our Haven 
Investments Property, LLC tract and along the centerline of said Shady Lane, a distance of 
1346.40 feet to an 1/2 inch iron rod set with cap for corner, said point being the northwest corner 
of said Our Haven Investments Property, LLC tract, same point being the southwest corner of that 
certain tract of land conveyed to Tommy Glen Adams by deed as recorded in Instrument No. 
20101022001149850, Official Records, Collin County, Texas; 
 
THENCE South 88 degrees 30 minutes 35 seconds East, departing the centerline of said Shady 
Lane and along the common line of said Adams tract and said Our Haven Investments Property, 
LLC tract, passing a 1/2 inch iron rod found with cap stamped "Roome" for corner at a distance 
of 21.09 feet, and continuing for a total distance of 1056.00 feet to a a 1/2 inch iron rod found with 
cap stamped "Roome" for corner, said point being the northeast corner of said Our Haven 
Investments Property, LLC tract, same point being the southeast corner of said Adams tract, said 
point being in the west line of that certain tract of land conveyed to Reba Motsinger by deed as 
recorded in Instrument No. 20080602000656180, Official Public Records, Collin County, Texas; 
 
THENCE South 01 degrees 02 minutes 45 seconds West, along the common line of said Motsinger 
tract and said Our Haven Investments Property, LLC tract, a distance of 1346.44 feet to 1/2 inch 
iron rod set for corner, said point being the southwest corner of that certain tract of land conveyed 
to Richard W. Schertz and Stephanie M. Schertz by deed as recorded in Instrument No. 



20130816001163530, Official Public Records, Collin County, Texas, same point being the 
southeast corner of said Our Haven Investments Property, LLC tract, same point being in the 
centerline of said Snider Lane; 
 
THENCE South 88 degrees 03 minutes 35 seconds West, along the south line of said Our Haven 
Investments Property, LLC tract and along the center line of said Snider Lane, a distance of 
1066.44 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 1,428,829 square feet or 32.80 acres 
of computed land. 
 
 
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend.  If you are unable 
to attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, Attention: City Secretary, 
Toshia Kimball, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas 75002, email tkimball@lucastexas.us and 
it will be presented at the hearing. If you have any questions about the above hearing, you may 
contact Development Services Director, Joe Hilbourn at  jhilbourn@lucastexas.us. 
 
  
 
 
 
 

mailto:tkimball@lucastexas.us
mailto:jhilbourn@lucastexas.us










STATE OF TEXAS  

COUNTY OF COLLIN 

   

WHEREAS Our Haven Investments Property, LLC, is the owner of a 32.80 acre tract of land out of the J. 
Thompson Survey Abstract No. 893 in Collin County Texas, being being all of that certain tract of land 
conveyed to Our Haven Investments Property, LLC, by General Warranty Deed with Vendor's Lien as 
recorded in Instrument No. 20160407000413150, Official Public Records, Collin County, Texas, and being 
more particularly described as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron rod set with cap for corner, said point being at the southwest corner of 
said Our Haven Investments Property, LLC tract, same point being in the southeast corner of that certain 
tract of land conveyed to Jennifer Emery by deed as recorded in Instrument No. 20191211001574620, 
Official Public Records, Collin County, Texas, said point being at the intersection of Snider Lane and 
Shady Lane, said point also being in the north line of that certain tract of land conveyed to United States 
of America by deed as recorded in Volume 755, Page 382, Deed Records, Collin County, Texas; 

 

THENCE North 01 degrees 29 minutes 25 seconds East, along the west line of said Our Haven 
Investments Property, LLC tract and along the centerline of said Shady Lane, a distance of 1346.40 feet 
to an 1/2 inch iron rod set with cap for corner, said point being the northwest corner of said Our Haven 
Investments Property, LLC tract, same point being the southwest corner of that certain tract of land 
conveyed to Tommy Glen Adams by deed as recorded in Instrument No. 20101022001149850, Official 
Records, Collin County, Texas; 

 

THENCE South 88 degrees 30 minutes 35 seconds East, departing the centerline of said Shady Lane and 
along the common line of said Adams tract and said Our Haven Investments Property, LLC tract, passing 
a 1/2 inch iron rod found with cap stamped "Roome" for corner at a distance of 21.09 feet, and 
continuing for a total distance of 1056.00 feet to a a 1/2 inch iron rod found with cap stamped "Roome" 
for corner, said point being the northeast corner of said Our Haven Investments Property, LLC tract, 
same point being the southeast corner of said Adams tract, said point being in the west line of that 
certain tract of land conveyed to Reba Motsinger by deed as recorded in Instrument No. 
20080602000656180, Official Public Records, Collin County, Texas; 

 

THENCE South 01 degrees 02 minutes 45 seconds West, along the common line of said Motsinger tract 
and said Our Haven Investments Property, LLC tract, a distance of 1346.44 feet to 1/2 inch iron rod set 
for corner, said point being the southwest corner of that certain tract of land conveyed to Richard W. 
Schertz and Stephanie M. Schertz by deed as recorded in Instrument No. 20130816001163530, Official 
Public Records, Collin County, Texas, same point being the southeast corner of said Our Haven 
Investments Property, LLC tract, same point being in the centerline of said Snider Lane; 



 

THENCE South 88 degrees 03 minutes 35 seconds West, along the south line of said Our Haven 
Investments Property, LLC tract and along the center line of said Snider Lane, a distance of 1066.44 feet 
to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 1,428,829 square feet or 32.80 acres of computed land. 



Item No. 03 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Agenda Request 
March 14, 2024 

 
 

 
Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Consider approving the request submitted by Aziz Aghayev on behalf of Forest Grove Lucas, LLC 
for a minor plat creating two lots being 2.34 acres of a called 7.33-acre tract of land located in the 
John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract Number 506, Tract 13, otherwise known as 950 West Forest 
Grove Road, Lucas, Texas. 
 
Background Information  
 
The request for the minor plat is to create two lots from an existing tract of land. The lots are 
currently zoned R-1 (Single-family residential 1-acre lots). The plat creates two lots slightly larger 
than the required minimum of one acre. The lots use the existing frontage on West Forest Grove 
Road and there is a right-of-way dedication. The project uses the existing water main and the 
drainage calculations are shown on the minor plat. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
1. Location Map 
2. Minor Plat 
3. Minor Plat Application and Checklist 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
Staff recommends approval of the minor plat as presented.  
 
Motion  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the request submitted by Aziz Aghayev on behalf of Forest Grove 
Lucas, LLC for a minor plat creating two lots being 2.34 acres of a called 7.33-acre tract of land 
located in the John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract Number 506, Tract 13, otherwise known as 950 
West Forest Grove Road, Lucas, Texas. 



Map data © OpenStreetMap contributors, Microsoft, Facebook, Inc. and its affiliates, Esri
Community Maps contributors, Map layer by Esri

Legend

Lucas Parcels

Date: 10/3/2023

0 0.04 0.090.02

mi

±

CASPIAN ESTATES: LOCATION MAP



STATE PLANE
COORDINATES
N:7095534.09
E:2553212.32

WEST FOREST
GROVE ROAD

P.O.B.
3/8" IRF

IRSC 1/
2"

 IR
F

IRSC IRSC

PKS

IRSCIRSC

1/2" IRF W/
YELLOW CAP
STAMPED "5310"

PKS

3/8" IRF

1/2" IRFIRSC

1/2" IRF

TRACT 13:
7.333 ACRES

FOREST GROVE
LUCAS, LLC

20211025002171480
D.R.C.C.T.

LOT 1,
BLOCK A

1.024 ACRES
(44,606 SQ. FT.)

(30' RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION)
(8,478 SQ. FT., 0.195 ACRES)

COUNTY ROAD 321
(A.K.A. MARY LEE ROAD)

(VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY)

CENTERLINE

CE
N

TE
RL

IN
E

LOT 2,
BLOCK A

1.104 ACRES
(48,106 SQ. FT.)

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:
  S

VY
-2

25
53

-L
O

TS
 1

-2
_E

ST
AT

ES
 1

.D
W

G
FI

LE
 L

O
CA

TI
O

N
:  

R:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
22

\2
25

53
- L

uc
as

- 2
65

5C
R 

32
1\

AC
AD

\S
he

et
s\

PR
EL

IM
-M

IN
O

RS
\S

VY
-2

25
53

-L
O

TS
 1

-2
_E

ST
AT

ES
 1

.d
w

g
LA

ST
 M

O
DI

FI
ED

 O
N

:  
10

/2
/2

02
3 

3:
03

 P
M

PL
O

TT
ED

 O
N

:  
10

/2
/2

02
3 

3:
15

 P
M

(NOT TO SCALE)

ABBREVIATIONS

CONTROLLING MONUMENT

POINT OF BEGINNING

EASEMENT

CABINET
VOLUME
PAGE
INSTRUMENT
NUMBER

POINT OF COMMENCING

IRON ROD FOUND

INSTRUMENT NUMBER

IRON PIPE FOUND
IRON ROD FOUND CAPPED

PLAT RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS
DEED RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS

ELEVATION
BUILDING LINE SETBACK

(C.M.)

P.O.B.

ESMT

CAB.
VOL.

PG.
INST.

NO.

P.O.C.

INST. NO.

IRF
IPF

IRFC

P.R.C.C.T.
D.R.C.C.T.

O.P.R.C.C.T.

ADS

ELEV.
B.L.

VICINITY MAP

RECORD BEARING(XX° XX' XX")

PURPOSE NOTE:
The purpose of this plat is to create two (2) lots of record from existing tracts of land.

RECORD DISTANCE(XX.XX)

"URBAN STRUCTURE + SURVEY, PLLC"

3-1/4" ALUMINUM DISC STAMPED
"URBAN STRUCTURE + SURVEY, PLLC" SET

IRSC IRON ROD SET w/ ORANGE CAP STAMPED

FOREST GROVE
ROAD

CLOVE GLEN
COURT

C
R

 321

STACY ROAD

STONE HINGE
DRIVE

WOLF CREEK
DRIVE

MARY LEE

LANE

C
R

 1034

W
H

ISPER
IN

G
A

C
R

ES LA
N

E

STALLION
DRIVE

C
O

U
N

TR
Y

C
LU

B
 R

O
A

D

M
A

N
 O

' W
A

R
LA

N
E

SEC
R

ETA
R

IA
T

LA
N

E

A
FFIR

M
ED

LA
N

E

SEA
TTLE SLEW
LA

N
E

ABBY
LANE

SITE

GENERAL NOTES

1. Basis of bearings shown hereon are based on the State Plane Coordinate System of 1983
(NAD83, 2011) TXNC-4202, as derived by GNSS from Trimble RTKNet Network.

2. Vertical datum is NAVD88 GEOID18, as derived by GNSS from  Trimble RTK Network.

3. This survey was performed without the benefit of a title commitment, abstract of title, or
title report.  The property could be subject to easements not shown hereon.

4. Selling a portion of this addition by metes and bounds is a violation of city ordinance and
state law, and subject to fines and/or withholding of utilities and building permits.

5. “Lots or portions of lots within the floodplain or areas of special flood hazard require a
development permit prior to issuance of a building permit or commencement of
construction including site grading, on all or part of those lots”. According to Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) Map No. 48085C0405J dated 06\02\2009 prepared by Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for Collin County, Texas, this property is within
Zone X by graphical plotting.

6. This phase of development will be served by public infrastructure currently in place. Future
phases that require public improvements will be submitted along with supporting civil plans
once they are ready to proceed.

SURVEYOR’S CERTIFICATION

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
That I, David A. Minton, do hereby certify, that I prepared this plat from an actual on the
ground survey of the land as described and that the corner monuments shown thereon were properly placed under
my personal supervision in accordance with the Platting Rules and Regulations of the City of Lucas Planning and
Zoning Commission.

_________________________________________
David A. Minton, RPLS
Texas License No 6233

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF COLLIN

Before me, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this day personally
appeared David A. Minton, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and
acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same for the purpose and considerations therein expressed. Given
under my hand and seal of office, this _______ day of __________________, 2023.

___________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE
STATE OF TEXAS  §
COUNTY OF COLLIN §

WHEREAS, Forest Grove Lucas LLC is the owner of a 2.323 Acre (101,191 square feet) tract of land situated in the John W. Kerby Survey,
Abstract Number 506, City of Lucas, Collin County, Texas; said 2.323 acre tract being a portion of that certain tract of land described as Tract 13
in deed to Forest Grove, LLC, recorded as Instrument Number 20211025002171480 of the Deed Records of Collin County, Texas (D.R.C.C.T.) and
being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a 3/8" iron rod found for the southeast corner of a tract of land described in deed to Javier Vega and Emma Castillo recorded as
Instrument Number 2014027001167510 (D.R.C.C.T.), same being an interior ell corner of said Tract 13;

THENCE North 01°15'05” West, with the common line of said Tract 13 and said Javier Vega tract for a distance of 112.79 feet to a 1/2" iron rod
set with an orange plastic cap stamped “U.S. Plus Survey” from which a 1/2" iron rod found for reference at the northeast corner of said Javier
Vega tract bears North 01°15'05” West a distance of 146.36 feet;

THENCE North 89°46'01” East, departing said common line of Tract 2 and Javier Vega tracts and across said Tract 13 for a distance of 101.07 feet
to a 1/2" iron rod set with an orange plastic cap stamped “U.S. Plus Survey” in an east line of said Tract 13, same being in the west line of a tract
of land described in deed to HWP Properties, LP, recorded as Instrument Number 20060327000389570 (D.R.C.C.T.), from which a 1/2" iron rod
with a yellow cap stamped “5310” found for reference bears North 01°10'31” West a distance of 125.96 feet;

THENCE South 01°10'31” East, passing a 1/2" iron rod set for reference with an orange plastic cap stamped “U.S. Plus Survey” set for reference
at a distance of 412.41 feet, and continuing a total distance of 434.41 feet to the most southern southeast corner of said Tract 13, same being in
the north line of a 35' Right-of-Way Dedication to West Forest Grove Road by the Rustic Addition, an Addition to the City of Lucas recorded in
Volume I, Page 541 of the Plat Records of Collin County, Texas (P.R.C.C.T.);

THENCE South 89°49'50” West, with the common line of said Tract 13, and the north Right-of-Way line of said West Forest Grove Road, at a
distance of 282.73 feet to a mag Nail set for the southwest corner of said Tract 13, same being the southeast corner of a tract of land described
in deed to Donna Carmickle and Bill Carmickle, recorded as Instrument Number 20130703000933150 (D.R.C.C.T.);

THENCE departing the north R.O.W. line of said West Forest Grove Road, and with the common line of said Tract 13 and said Carmickle tract,
the following bearings and distances:

North 00°42'43” West, at 30.00 feet passing a 1/2" iron rod set for reference with an orange plastic cap stamped “U.S. Plus Survey” 
and continuing for a total distance of 316.70 feet to a 1/2" iron rod set with an orange plastic cap stamped “U.S. Plus Survey”;

North 89°49'11” East for a distance of 13.00 feet to a 1/2" iron rod found for the southwest corner of said Javier Vega tract, same 
being the most northerly southeast corner of said Carmickle tract;

THENCE North 89°52'12” East, departing said Carmickle tract and with the common line of said Tract 13 and said Javier Vega tract a distance of
166.21 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 101,191 Square Feet, or 2.323 Acres of land, more or less.

NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That I, Forest Grove Lucas LLC, do hereby bind themselves and their heirs, assignees and successors of title this plat designating the herein
above described property as Lots 1 and 2, Block A, Caspian Estates 3, an addition to the City of Lucas, and do hereby dedicate to the public use
forever the streets, alleys, and right-of-way easements shown thereon, and do hereby reserve the easement strips shown on this plat for the
mutual use and accommodation of garbage collection agencies and all public utilities desiring to use or using same. Any public utility shall have
the right to remove and keep removed all or part of any buildings, fences, trees, shrubs, or other improvements or growths that in any way
endanger or interfere with the construction, maintenance or efficiency of its respective systems on any of these easements strips, and any
public utility shall at all times have the right of ingress and egress to and from and upon the said easement strips for the purpose of
constructing, reconstructing, inspecting, patrolling, without the necessity at any time of procuring the permission of anyone. Additionally, I
certify that I am the sole owner of the dedicated property and that no other’s interest are attached to this property unless otherwise indicated
on the required Mortgage Holder Certification that is included on this plat. This plat approved subject to all platting ordinances, rules,
regulations and resolutions of the City of Lucas, Texas.

Witness our hands at LUCAS, Texas, this _______ day of ______________________, 2023.

_____________________________________________
Aziz Aghayev, Owner
Forest Grove Lucas LLC

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF COLLIN

Before me, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this day personally
appeared Aziz Aghayev, Owner, Forest Grove Lucas LLC, known to me to be the persons whose names are subscribed to the
foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that they each executed the same for the purpose and considerations
therein expressed.
Given under my hand and seal of office, this ______ day of _________, 2023.

____________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

PLANNING AND ZONING CERTIFICATE

Approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, Texas, on the

____DAY OF___________________, 2023.

ATTEST:

______________________________________________________
Tommy Tolson
Chairperson, Planning and Zoning Commission

______________________________________________________
City Secretary

PAGE 1 OF 1PROJECT NO.: 22553 1 inch = 60 feetISSUE DATE: 10/02/2023

MINOR PLATCASPIAN ESTATES 1LOTS 1 - 2, BLOCK A(LOT 1: 1.024 ACRES) (LOT 2: 1.104 ACRES)ZONED: R106/30/2023BEING 2.323 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED INTHE JOHN W. KERBY SURVEYABSTRACT NO. 506CITY OF LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS

GRAPHIC SCALE
060'

1 inch = 60 feet

30' 60'

ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITIES (OSSF) NOTES:

1. All lots must utilize alternative type On-Site Sewage Facilities.

2. Must maintain state-mandated setback of all On-Site Sewage Facility components from and/all easements and
drainage areas, water distribution lines, sharp breaks and/or creeks/rivers/ponds, etc. (Per State regulations).  No
variances will be grantes for setbacks or for OSSF reduction.

Individual lot setbacks:
a) Lot 1 is bordered by a 20 foot drainage, utility & access easement, a private road easement to the West; and a
20 foot drainage & utility easement to the South.  Additional OSSF setbacks may apply.  Lot layout/placement of
improvements may be limited so careful pre-planning will be required.
b.) Lot 2 is bordered by a 20 foot drainage & utility easement to the South; and a 20 foot easement to the East.  
Additional OSSF setbacks may apply.  Lot layout/placement of improvements may be limited so careful 
pre-planning will be required.

3. There are no easements other than those noted above.

4. There were no permitted/approved existing structures with associated OSSF(s) on any lot at the time of approval.
Any existing structures or OSSFs on any lot must be reviewed and permitted by Collin County Development
Services prior to any use.

5. Tree removal and/or grading for OSSF may be required on individual lots.

6. Each lot is limited to a maximum of 5,000 gallons of treated/disposed sewage each day.

7. Individual site evaluations and OSSF design plans (meeting all State and County requirements) must be submitted
to and approved by Collin County for each lot prior to construction of any OSSF system.

CITY APPROVAL CERTIFICATE

This plat is hereby approved by the Development Services Director of the City of Lucas, Texas, in accordance with the Lucas
Code of Ordinances, review and approval procedures.

_____________________________  _____________________
Joseph Hillbourn Date
Development Services Director 

ATTEST:

_____________________________  _____________________
Signature Date

______________________________________________________
Name & Title

The Director of Public Works of the City of Lucas, Texas hereby certifies that to the best of his/her knowledge or belief, this
subdivision plat conforms to all requirements of the Lucas Code of Ordinances and with engineering construction
standards and processes adopted by the City of Lucas, Texas as to which his approval is required.

____________________________ _____________________
Scott Holden Date
Director of Public Works/City Engineer

ATTEST:

____________________________ _____________________
Signature Date

______________________________________________________
Name & Title

1100 E. Campbell, Suite 210
Richardson, Texas 75081

Firm Registration #F- 10194610, 214.396.2339
www.urbanstrategy.us

CIVIL
Urban Strategy
4222 Main St.

Dallas, TX 75226
www.urbanstrategy.us

214-295-5775

PRELIMINARY, THIS
DOCUMENT SHALL NOT BE

RECORDED FOR ANY
PURPOSE AND SHALL NOT
BE USED OR VIEWED OR
RELIED UPON AS A FINAL

SURVEY DOCUMENT.

SURVEYOR
David A. Minton, RPLS
Texas License No 6233

Urban Strategy
1100 E. Campbell, Ste 210

214-396-2339
davidm@urbanstrategy.us
TBPELS Firm No. 10194610

ON SITE POST-DRAINAGE CALCS (Q=CIA)

DRAINAGE AREA

1

AREA
(ACRES)

2.34

C I
(100)

7.86

Q
(100)

10.16

REMARKS

0.55

Tc
(MIN)

15

ON SITE PRE-DRAINAGE CALCS (Q=CIA)

DRAINAGE AREA

1

AREA
(ACRES)

2.34

C I
(100)

7.86

Q
(100)

10.16

REMARKS

DRAINAGE TO SHEET FLOW OFF SITE TO DITCH/STREAM0.55

Tc
(MIN)

15

DRAINAGE TO SHEET FLOW OFF SITE TO DITCH/STREAM

SUBMISSION LOG
DATE DESCRIPTION

08/04/2023 ADDRESSED CITY COMMENTS
08/09/2023 ADDRESSED CITY COMMENTS
08/25/2023 ADDRESSED CITY COMMENTS

HEALTH DEPARTMENT CERTIFICATION

I, as a representative of Collin County Development Services, do hereby certify that the
on-site sewage facilities described on the plat confirm to the applicable OSSF laws of the
State of Texas, that site evaluations have been submitted representing the site
conditions in the area in which on-site sewage facilities are planned to be used.

______________________________________________________
Designated Representative Collin County Development Services

_____________________________________
Date

10/02/2023 ADDRESSED CITY COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' DRAINAGE, UTILITY & ACCESS EASEMENT BY THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATT CR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS MKR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS MKR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE FENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE FENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE FENCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
587

AutoCAD SHX Text
586

AutoCAD SHX Text
585

AutoCAD SHX Text
584

AutoCAD SHX Text
583

AutoCAD SHX Text
587

AutoCAD SHX Text
585

AutoCAD SHX Text
582

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWP PROPERTIES, LP 5.779 ACRES 20060327000389570 D.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAVIER VEGA EMMA CASTILLO 2014027001167510 D.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR ESTATES  LOT 27 BLOCK A VOL 2015, PG 128 P.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DONNA CARMICKLE & BILL CARMICKLE INST. NO. 20130703000933150 D.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOBBY R WEST VOL. 970, PG. 513 D.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER OF TRACT 13: 7.333 ACRES FOREST GROVE LUCAS, LLC 20211025002171480 D.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN W. KERBY SURVEY ABSTRACT NO. 506

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE ROAD NO. 5209 (26' PRIVATE ROAD EASMENT) (VOL. 761, PG. 187)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUSTIC ADDITION VOL. I, PG. 541 P.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' RIGHT-OF-WAY (VOL. I, PG. 541)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N89°24'19"W  280.68')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N89°53'52"E  13.01')

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N89°34'58"E  165.99')

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00°09'02"E  97.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S09°57'38"W  194.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT BY THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N00°31'55"W  316.62')

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' RIGHT-OF-WAY (VOL. G, PG. 180)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPLAT OF COX-CRANFILL ADDITION VOL. I, PG. 541 P.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1R

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2R

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER OF TRACT 1: 2.38 ACRES FOREST GROVE LUCAS, LLC 20211025002171480 D.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREEKSIDE ESTATES BLOCK A VOL. 2015, PG. 31 P.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROADMOOR ESTATES REPLAT  VOL 2013, PG 492 P.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOYLE W. TUCKER & JOLLY W. TUCKER VOL. 4599, PG. 1879 D.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT BY THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE ENCLAVE VOL. N, PG. 727 P.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION VOL. N, PG. 727 P.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY BY USE AND OCCUPATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION VOL. N, PG. 727 P.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COELEN ADDITION VOL. G, PG. 180 P.R.C.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Line Table

AutoCAD SHX Text
Line #

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
Length

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
282.32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
282.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Direction

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 89°49'50" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°42'43" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00°42'43" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°49'50" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°10'31" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°10'31" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°49'50" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 88°50'14" E

















































Item No. 04 
 
 

 

City of Lucas 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Agenda Request 
March 14, 2024 

 
 

 
Requester: Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
Agenda Item Request  
 
Executive Session: There is not an executive session scheduled for this meeting. 
 
Background Information  
 
As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission may convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential 
legal advice from the City Attorney regarding any item on the agenda at any time during the 
meeting. This meeting is closed to the public as provided in the Texas Government Code. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation  
 
NA 
 
Motion  
 
NA 


	00 - Agenda
	Call to Order
	Public Hearing Agenda
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session
	Adjournment
	Certification

	01 - Consent Agenda CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	01a - 02-08-2024 Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes
	02 - Cameron Estates Public Hearing CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	02a - Cameron Estates Public Notice
	02b - Cameron Estates Vacation Plat
	02c - Cameron Estates Zoning Application
	02d - Cameron Estates Legal Description
	03 - Caspian Estates Minor Plat CS
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion

	03a - Caspian Estates Location Map
	03b - Caspian Estates Minor Plat
	Sheets and Views
	24x36


	03c - Caspian Estates Minor Plat Application and Checklist
	04 - Executive Session
	Agenda Item Request
	Background Information
	Attachments/Supporting Documentation
	Budget/Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Motion


